My Fellow Shareholders,

One mark of a well-developed strategy is its ability to withstand changing market conditions. By that
measure, 2003 once again demonstrated the validity of Boston Private’s approach to the wealth management
market. The growing strength of our own organic business-building efforts, in conjunction with strong
equity markets, enabled us to achieve solid growth – in asset management fees, in net interest income, and
on our balance sheet – despite a low interest rate environment. We also made considerable strategic progress
with three major acquisitions that will enhance our core business offerings and strengthen our presence in
targeted, high-growth geographic regions on a national level.
Financial Highlights
2003 was a year of substantial operational growth for Boston Private. Highlights include:
– 70% growth in our assets under management, reaching nearly $11.0 billion, and over $2.2 billion in net
new sales, outpacing the substantial lift we saw from market appreciation
– 21% growth in our balance sheet, fueled by deposit growth of 18% and loan growth of 24%
– 16% increase in revenues over last year
– Strong profitability growth on an operational basis
Strategic Progress
Boston Private’s strategy has remained virtually unchanged since its formulation over 15 years ago: we are
focused on creating exceptional shareholder value by providing a full complement of wealth management
services to high net worth individuals, their families and businesses, institutions, and foundations in
selected regions across the United States. By diversifying our business – both geographically and in the
range of services we offer – Boston Private has been able to weather the inevitable fluctuations in markets
and regional economic conditions. This strategy has resulted in a compound annual earnings growth rate
of 18% over the past 10 years.
To further our goal of building a national franchise by forming wealth management platforms in targeted
markets, Boston Private made the following strategic moves in 2003:
Dalton, Greiner, Hartman, Maher & Co., LLC
In May, we announced our agreement to acquire an 80% interest in Dalton, Greiner, Hartman, Maher
& Co., LLC (DGHM) of New York, a distinguished value-style investment firm specializing in small-cap
equities with $3.0 billion in assets under management. DGHM will provide a foundation for growing our
wealth management business in the metropolitan New York region.
First State Bancorp
We gained a strategic foothold in another targeted market – Los Angeles County – in July when we signed
an agreement to acquire First State Bancorp, the holding company of First State Bank of California, a $185
million commercial bank with a 20 year history that provides a wide range of commercial, depository, and
private banking services to upscale customers in greater Los Angeles County.
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Bingham, Osborn & Scarborough LLC
We added significantly to our Northern California regional cluster through an initial 20% investment in
Bingham, Osborn & Scarborough, a financial planning and investment management firm based in San
Francisco. The firm’s proven track record and expertise make it a strong complement to our existing
investment management and private banking resources.
To fund these acquisitions and the future growth of our company, Boston Private successfully raised $100
million in equity capital in December. Of this, $47.4 million was used to fund the Dalton Greiner transaction
and the remaining proceeds are being held in a forward agreement to be accessed at a later date this year.
We appreciate the confidence and trust of our shareholders and will use this capital wisely. Enterprise wide,
Boston Private now has ten operating companies focused on private banking, financial planning, and
investment management in five attractive wealth management markets.
We are optimistic about our future opportunities and as always, we will pursue only those acquisition
opportunities that meet our rigorous criteria for operational excellence, proven expertise, and demonstrated
integrity. Naturally, our focus on organic growth following market-entry via acquisition will continue to be
the cornerstone of our strategy. As part of that growth strategy, we were pleased to add a new executive to
our staff, Jonathan H. Parker, who was recently named President of our Western Region with responsibilities
for our strategy and operations in that area.
Corporate Governance
The world we now live in has placed “corporate governance” under the microscope, and it is essential that
our shareholders understand the extent to which Boston Private upholds the highest ethical and legal
standards in its business and financial reporting practices. In 2003 we made investments in our compliance
procedures as we prepared to expand our company to ten affiliates and meet the requirements of the
Sarbanes Oxley Act and related legislation. This activity is particularly necessary in the current investment
climate, which demands – and rightly so – that companies do more than simply comply with the law to
maintain public confidence.
As part of our focus on corporate governance, in September we brought Thomas E. Cimeno, Jr. on board
as Chief Compliance and Risk Management Officer. Tom brings a wealth of experience in compliance and
risk management with him after a 34 year career with the Federal Reserve Bank and we are delighted to have
him on the senior management team.
Looking Ahead
As the economic recovery gathers steam in 2004, Boston Private will continue its growth plan and
commitment to delivering strong returns to our shareholders. Our objectives for 2004 are:
– progressively grow our existing market share in New England and Northern California and develop our
capabilities in New York, Southern California and the Pacific Northwest;
– manage our business to benefit from diversified revenue opportunities, and control operating expenses
while mitigating risk from unpredictable market conditions; and
– maintain effective corporate governance and best business practices.
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timothy l. vaill
President & Chief Executive Officer
Boston Private Financial Holdings, Inc.

Acknowledgements
Since the founding of our firm, the primary tenet of Boston Private’s leadership philosophy has been to hire
truly exceptional people. This policy serves us well, enabling us to provide personal service above the norm,
build enduring client relationships, and ultimately, create superior shareholder value. For that reason, I’d
like to thank everyone in the Boston Private family for their outstanding efforts throughout 2003, as well as
our clients for their continued patronage.
I’d also like to thank our Board of Directors for their valued counsel. Retiring from the board in 2003 was
Chas Wood, a long-time director of Boston Private Bank and subsequently the parent company, serving as
Chairman of both, who served diligently and eloquently for over 14 years. Also retiring was Mike Hazard,
the founder of Westfield Capital Management and a senior member of the Boston Private staff, who served
as Vice Chairman of our board. We will miss them both. Finally, I’d also like to recognize our newest board
members, Kathy Graveline and Rich Morris, both of whom joined us during the year. We have already
benefited from their insight and expertise.
My final thanks go to you, our shareholders, for your continued support. You have my assurance that all of
us at Boston Private will do our utmost to continue earning that support as we go forward. Please be sure
to read carefully the financial analysis and commentary written by Walt Pressey, our President and Chief
Financial Officer as well as my long-time business colleague and partner here at Boston Private. Walt’s
comments can be found on page 12.
Sincerely,

timothy l. vaill
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
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william a. muggia
President & Chief Investment Officer
Westfield Capital Management, LLC

“There are several important reasons why Westfield has outperformed the Russell 2000
every year since inception. We’re totally decentralized, the individual is totally empowered,
and we’re receptive to new ideas and new ways of doing things. Those are the same reasons
behind Boston Private’s growth.”
b pfh - 4

growth
Every financial services provider is committed to achieving growth. But what kind of growth?
At Boston Private, “growth” means disciplined expansion, the kind of growth that comes from having
– and relentlessly pursuing – a focused strategy. For us, that means carefully selecting the regions into which
we extend our business operations for maximum growth potential. It means identifying and acquiring
those private banking, financial planning, and investment management firms that share our philosophy and
meet our stringent criteria for excellence in both business performance and client service.
Disciplined growth also means striving to provide competitive investment returns in line with
each client’s life cycle, growth objectives and risk profile. As each client has individual requirements for
managing their wealth, we work with our clients to identify those products and services that best meet their
evolving needs.

In 15 years one in seven households aged
65 or more will have liquid assets over
$1 million. Today that ratio is one in thirteen.1
Because Boston Private is committed to disciplined growth, we will not pursue size for its own sake.
Nor will we allow our corporate organization to grow larger than necessary, preferring a streamlined
structure that ensures local autonomy and fast, informed decision making. Above all, we will never let the
pursuit of growth cause us to lose focus on our mission of delivering high quality products and services to
the wealth management marketplace.
Our commitment to disciplined growth remains firm because it works. It works for our clients, who get
direct access to their region’s top wealth management experts and a growing array of products and services.
It works for our affiliate companies because it enables them to maintain their autonomy while pursuing
their own growth objectives. And it works for our shareholders; an investment of $1,000 in Boston Private
in 1993 would be worth $10,720 at the end of 2003.2
1
2

VIP Forum 2003
Assumes stock price of $2.38 per share at December 31, 1993 and $24.84 per share at December 31, 2003 and
includes dividends paid during the period.
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d i v e r s i f i c at i o n
Diversification has always been the hallmark of a prudent, well-balanced investment portfolio. At Boston
Private, we believe diversification is equally essential to profitable business growth. That’s why our strategy
is built around diversity on several levels.
By having three distinct yet complementary core competencies of private banking, financial planning
and investment management, we have the ability to pursue growth opportunities in ever-changing
market conditions. The breadth and depth of our services give us the ability to better meet all our
clients’ wealth management needs – and provide us with a diversified revenue stream for more consistent
financial performance.

From 2000 to 2002, the likelihood for high
net worth individuals to make an investment
decision in consultation with professionals
increased from 45% to 56%.1
Our approach also provides us with a diverse client base of individuals, businesses, endowments and
institutions. Our focus on cultivating personal relationships as a trusted advisor has led Boston Private
to develop an understanding of the needs, attitudes, and unique challenges of entrepreneurs in targeted
industries, such as venture capital, the legal profession, and real estate. This broad base allows us to pursue
new, high-growth opportunities as they emerge. Finally, our enterprise reaches five U.S. regions – New
England, Northern California, New York/Metro, Los Angeles County and the Pacific Northwest – enabling
us to counter balance fluctuations in individual regional economies.
Boston Private has continuously diversified over the last 11 years; from one region to five; from one
capability to three; from traditional banking clients to highly specialized, wealth management clients. This
diversification and expansion has enabled Boston Private to build a comprehensive group of financial
products and services. Just as important, we have developed the competencies that are enabling us to build
enduring client relationships and further our growth strategy.
1

Merrill Lynch/Cap Gemini Ernst & Young World Wealth Report 2003
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brian rivotto
President & Chief Operating Officer
RINET Company, LLC

“RINET has been able to provide steady returns for many clients by advising them to
diversify into alternative investments. But at Boston Private, diversification means more
than asset allocation strategies. It also means sharing diverse views and best practices
within our affiliate network. We’ve all benefited from it.”
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barbara l. evers
Executive Vice President
Borel Private Bank & Trust Company

“At Borel, client service is all about personal contact and going above and beyond
expectations. Since we joined Boston Private, our clients have been delighted that we’ve
expanded our offerings to include mortgage loans. Now we can streamline and simplify the
loan process, bringing even more value to the relationship.”
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serv ice
When you take a closer look at the Boston Private strategy, it becomes clear that all of its major components – the broad range of service offerings, the regional clusters of affiliates, the focus on company
autonomy – are the outgrowth of a singular commitment to client service.
For example, to more fully serve the wealth management needs of high net worth clients, we look
beyond the traditional boundaries of the financial services industry in building our business model. It is
our belief that clients prefer to work with local experts in their own communities so we are pursuing a
regional expansion strategy. And as we pursue our acquisition program, we ensure that clients continue
to receive the highest level of personal attention by allowing our new affiliates to continue to run their
businesses autonomously.

Commitment to excellent service is one of
the most important attributes of a service
provider for high net worth clients.1
But at Boston Private, client service is more than a driving force. It’s a daily imperative for every one of
us. You can see it in the way bank officers gladly pitch in and help tellers take deposits on a busy afternoon.
It’s reflected in the special events our affiliates hold for clients on everything from antique appraisals to
fly-fishing. And it shows in the diligence we apply to exploring new, alternative investments as part of the
financial planning process.
A client of ours summed it up well when he recently said, “They think from the client’s point of view
– what does the client need and how can we provide it?”
That attitude enables Boston Private companies to build a significant portion of their business through
referrals from satisfied clients – and keeps client retention extraordinarily high.
1

VIP Forum 2003

b pfh - 9

regional presence
Building a strong presence in targeted regions of high wealth concentration and active wealth creation is
essential to the continued success of Boston Private’s strategy and our ability to serve our clients effectively.
For us, building our company by region means empowering the people who know our local markets and
clients best – our affiliate companies – to run their operations as they see fit.
Regional clusters provide our clients with the breadth and depth of services they require from private
banking, financial planning and investment management to manage their wealth. By building regional
clusters of autonomous affiliates rather than taking a national franchise approach, Boston Private realizes
many benefits. Most significantly, it preserves the unique character of each company and enables our
affiliates to maintain strong ties to their communities. And equally important, it gives our people greater
freedom – and a stronger incentive – to take initiative and pursue innovation.

The driving force in the growth and
development of cities and regions can be
found in productivity gains associated with
the clustering of talented people.1
This local autonomy is complemented by strong leadership at the corporate level. The Boston
Private executive team works closely with our affiliate companies, providing strategic guidance, as well
as sharing best practices across all business units. Our corporate organization also ensures that all Boston
Private companies meet our high standards of ethical business conduct and strong financial management
and control. Going beyond that, we imbue all our people with a tireless commitment to exceptional
client service.
The results of our regional approach have been strong and all of our affiliates have experienced
significant growth as part of our company. Boston Private works with affiliates to achieve their growth
objective of 15% per year by investing in their strategic initiatives and providing access to the knowledge and
ideas of the affiliate network. While unpredictable market environments may impact individual businesses,
working together we strive to mitigate these fluctuations and over time, deliver significant returns to
our shareholders.
1

Robert Lucas, Nobel prize winning economist “Technology and Tolerance”, The Brookings Review.
Richard Florida and Gary Gates
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jonathan h. parker
President, Western Region
Boston Private Financial Holdings, Inc.

“The power of the regional cluster derives from our ability to execute on behalf of our high
net worth clients. Our affiliates have exceptionally talented people who tap their partners’
resources in private banking, financial planning and investment management to provide
an unequalled value proposition for our clients.”
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let ter from the president & cfo

walter m. pressey
President & Chief Financial Officer
Boston Private Financial Holdings, Inc.

I welcome this opportunity to comment on Boston Private’s 2003 financial performance and financial
reporting values.
Our business model emphasizes revenue diversity and organic growth and in 2003 we achieved 16% revenue
growth, thanks to double-digit organic growth in assets under management, loans and deposits. This growth
was all the more noteworthy as we experienced a year of declining interest rates, which compressed net
interest margins and caused the equivalent of a 13% price decrease, affecting over 50% of our revenues.
Another major financial highlight of 2003 was our successful stock offering in December, which raised
approximately $100 million of new capital. We immediately used $47.4 million of the proceeds to finance the
acquisition of Dalton, Greiner, Hartman & Maher. The balance remains available through December 11, 2004,
pursuant to our innovative forward agreement with Merrill Lynch.
In preparation for our expansion to five distinct U.S. markets early in 2004, we invested in our infrastructure
by enhancing our financial reporting software, risk management resources, and regulatory compliance
functions. I am pleased to report that our system of internal controls is aligned to support our growth and
our accountability to you, our shareholders.
Finally, I’d like to reaffirm that Boston Private is committed to the highest standards of financial reporting
and to transparent communication of results. Although the Company regularly reports financial information
according to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), management also relies on certain
non-GAAP metrics to evaluate the Company’s financial performance. Since we utilize this information
for our own analysis, we strive to make this information equally available to the investing public. One
important example of a non-GAAP metric is Adjusted Earnings, which permits analysis of the “run rate” of
our business.
We look to the future enthusiastically and remain focused on delivering strong financial performance and
solid returns for our shareholders over the long term. We invite you to stay updated through our recently
enhanced Investor Relations site at www.BostonPrivate.com. Thank you for your continued confidence in
Boston Private.
Sincerely,

walter m. pressey
President & Chief Financial Officer
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consolidated balance sheets
(In thousands, except share data)

assets:
Cash and due from banks
Federal funds sold and other short term investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Money market investments
Investment securities available for sale (amortized cost of $392,440 and $280,054,
respectively, Note 6)
Loans held for sale
Loans receivable (Notes 7 and 12):
Commercial
Residential mortgage
Home equity and other consumer loans
Total loans
Less allowance for loan losses (Note 8)
Net loans

december 31, 2003

$

45,977
47,511
93,488
200

december 31, 2002

$

52,532
44,997
97,529
35,200

396,546
4,900

287,534
30,923

880,626
651,290
80,648
1,612,564
(20,172)

676,189
544,166
81,371
1,301,726
(17,050)

consolidated statements of operations
year ended
december 31, 2003

year ended
december 31, 2002

year ended
december 31, 2001

$81,034
5,921
4,502
44
304
875
92,680

$78,945
6,855
3,524
91
271
607
90,293

$75,043
9,928
4,193
170
351
2,794
92,479

interest expense:
Deposits
FHLB borrowings
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Federal funds purchased and other
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses (Note 8)
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

15,729
8,424
750
12
24,915
67,765
3,155
64,610

18,596
6,736
915
18
26,265
64,028
2,495
61,533

30,252
6,445
1,601
23
38,321
54,158
3,010
51,148

fees and other income:
Investment management and trust fees
Financial planning fees
Earnings (losses) in equity investments
Deposit account service charges
Gain on sale of loans, net
Gain on sale of investment securities, net (Note 6)
Cash administration fees
Other
Total fees and other income

49,426
6,951
202
919
2,854
2,508
680
2,544
66,084

38,086
5,893
(40)
834
2,609
1,619
833
2,034
51,868

38,115
5,040
(45)
843
1,092
3,431
1,118
1,677
51,271

operating expense:
Salaries and employee benefits (Note 15)
Occupancy and equipment (Note 9)
Professional services
Marketing and business development
Contract services and processing
Amortization of intangibles (Notes 3 and 10)
Merger expenses
Loss on early extinguishment of debt
Other (Note 16)
Total operating expense
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense (Note 14)
Net income

62,668
15,634
5,265
3,647
1,856
239
—
—
6,758
96,067
34,627
12,804
$21,823

52,494
11,467
3,269
3,618
1,803
88
—
—
6,024
78,763
34,638
10,893
$23,745

45,952
7,945
3,745
3,282
1,736
1,399
12,291
1,216
5,615
83,181
19,238
7,692
$11,546

$0.96
$0.92

$1.06
$1.02

$0.52
$0.50

22,822,608
23,714,644

22,412,665
23,357,066

22,119,726
23,053,052

(In thousands, except share data)

interest and dividend income:
Loans
Taxable investment securities
Non-taxable investment securities
Mortgage-backed securities
FHLB stock dividends
Federal funds sold and other
Total interest and dividend income

Per share data (Note 3):
Net income:
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share
Average basic common shares outstanding
Average diluted common shares outstanding
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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notes to consolidated financial statements
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreements.
Impaired loans are accounted for at the present value of the
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective
interest rate, except those loans that are accounted for at
fair value or at the lower of cost or fair value. Accrual of
interest income is discontinued and all interest previously
accrued but not collected is reversed against current period
income when a loan is initially classified as impaired. Interest
received on impaired loans is either applied against principal
or reported as income according to management’s judgment
as to the collectibility of principal. At December 31, 2003 and
2002 the amounts of impaired loans were immaterial.
Loans on which the accrual of interest has been
discontinued are designated nonaccrual loans. Accrual of
interest income on loans is discontinued when concern
exists as to the collectibility of principal or interest. When
a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, all interest previously
accrued but not collected is reversed against current period
income. Loans are removed from nonaccrual status when
they become less than ninety days past due and when
concern no longer exists as to the collectibility of principal
or interest. Interest received on nonaccruing loans is either
applied against principal or reported as income according
to management’s judgment as to the collectibility of
principal.
Allowance for Loan Losses
The allowance for loan losses is established through a
charge to operations. When management believes that
the collection of a loan’s principal balance is unlikely,
the principal amount is charged against the allowance.
Recoveries on loans that have been previously charged off
are credited to the allowance as amounts are received.
The allowance for loan losses is determined using
a systematic analysis and procedural discipline based
on historical experience, product types, and industry
benchmarks. The allowance is segregated into three
components: “general,” “specific” and “unallocated.” The
general component is determined by applying coverage
percentages to groups of loans based on risk. A system of
periodic loan reviews is performed to assess the inherent
risk and assign risk ratings to each loan individually.
Coverage percentages applied are determined based on
industry practice and management’s judgment. The specific
component is established by allocating a portion of the
allowance for loan losses to individual classified loans
on the basis of specific circumstances and assessments.
The unallocated component supplements the first two
components based on management’s judgment of the
effect of current and forecasted economic conditions on

borrowers’ abilities to repay, an evaluation of the allowance
for loan losses in relation to the size of the overall loan
portfolio, and consideration of the relationship of the
allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans, net
charge-off trends, and other factors. While this evaluation
process utilizes historical and other objective information,
the classification of loans and the establishment of the
allowance for loan losses rely to a great extent on the
judgment and experience of management.
While management evaluates currently available
information in establishing the allowance for loan losses,
future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary
if economic conditions differ substantially from the
assumptions used in making the evaluations. In addition,
various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their
examination process, periodically review a financial
institution’s allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may
require the financial institution to recognize additions to
the allowance based on their judgments about information
available to them at the time of their examination.
Investment Management Fees
Investment management fees are accrued as earned.
Performance fee revenues are not recognized until any
contingencies in the contract that could require the
performance fee to be reduced have been eliminated.
Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment are carried at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation
and amortization is computed primarily by the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, or the
terms of the leases if shorter.
Other Assets
Included within Other Assets is approximately $21.1 million
of partnerships and unconsolidated affiliates which are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Other assets also includes $2.0 million in trading account
securities. These mutual fund securities are held within a
Rabbi Trust and the assets are generally restricted to pay the
Company’s Deferred Compensation Plan liability. Gains
and losses are recognized in Other Income.
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill represents the excess of costs over fair value
of assets of businesses acquired. The Company adopted
the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) Statement No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, as of January 1, 2002. Pursuant to

b pfh - 21

notes to consolidated financial statements
Statement 142, goodwill and intangible assets acquired in
a purchase business combination and determined to have
an indefinite useful life are not amortized, but instead
tested for impairment at least annually in accordance
with the provisions of Statement 142. Statement 142 also
requires that intangible assets with estimateable useful
lives be amortized over their respective estimated useful
lives to their estimated residual value, and are reviewed for
impairment in accordance with FASB Statement No. 144,
Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.
Investment Management and
Trust Assets Under Management
Investment management and trust assets under
management totaled $11.0 billion and $6.4 billion at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These assets are
not included in the consolidated financial statements since
they are held in a fiduciary or agency capacity and are not
assets of the Company.

Employee Benefits
The Company established a corporate-wide 401(k) Profit
Sharing Plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries, which became effective
July 1, 2002. Contributions to those plans are generally
charged against earnings in the year they are made. See Note
15-Employee Benefits.
Incentive Plans
The Company maintains a Long-Term Incentive Plan
to encourage and create ownership of the Company’s
common stock by employees, and maintains a Director
Stock Option Plan to reward directors of the Company
for their service. The Company applies the intrinsic-valuebased method of accounting to account for its fixed-plan
stock options. Under this method, compensation expense
is recorded on the date of grant only if the current market
price of the underlying stock exceeded the exercise price. As
permitted, the Company has elected to continue to apply
the intrinsic-value-based method of accounting described
above, and has adopted only the disclosure requirements for
the fair value based method of accounting for stock based
compensation.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value
based method of accounting for stock based compensation.

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Net income:
As reported
Stock-based employee and director compensation expense,
net of related tax effects
Proforma
Basic earnings per share:
As reported
Proforma
Diluted earnings per share:
As reported
Proforma

year ended
december 31, 2003

year ended
december 31, 2002

year ended
december 31, 2001

$21,823

$23,745

$11,546

2,378
$19,445

2,671
$21,074

1,711
$9,835

$0.96
$0.85

$1.06
$0.94

$0.52
$0.44

$0.92
$0.82

$1.02
$0.90

$0.50
$0.43

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the
following weighted average assumptions used for grants:

Expected life
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected dividend yield
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2003

2002

2001

7 yrs.
31%
3.8%
1.2%

7 yrs.
30%
5.0%
0.7%

7 yrs.
25%
5.0%
0.8%

notes to consolidated financial statements
Income Taxes
The Company recognizes income taxes under the asset and
liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are established for the future tax consequences
attributable to temporary differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income during the period that
includes the enactment date.

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) excludes dilution and
is computed by dividing income available to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS reflects
the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted
into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common
stock that then shared in the earnings of the entity.

The following table is a reconciliation of the components of basic and diluted EPS computations for the three years ended
December 31:
2003
(In thousands, except
per share amounts)

net
income

Basic EPS
Stock options
Diluted EPS

$21,823
—
$21,823

2002

per
share
shares amount

22,823
892
23,715

$0.96
0.04
$0.92

net
income

$23,745
—
$23,745

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
During June 2002, the FASB issued Statement No. 146,
Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities. The provisions of this Statement are effective for
exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December
31, 2002. The Company has adopted the provisions of
Statement No. 146 for all disposal activities initiated
after December 31, 2002. In the first quarter of 2003, the
Company established a reserve for a lease commitment on
Sand Hill Road in Menlo Park, CA. This reserve was settled
during 2003 as more fully explained in Note 9-Premises &
Equipment.
During October 2002, the FASB issued Statement
No. 147, Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions,
which amends Statement No. 72, Accounting for Certain
Acquisitions of Banking or Thrift Institutions, Statement
No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets, and FASB Interpretation No. 9. Except
for transactions between two or more mutual institutions,
this Statement removes acquisitions of financial
institutions from the scope of both Statement No. 72 and
Interpretation No. 9 and requires that those transactions
be accounted for in accordance with Statements No. 141,

2001

shares

per
share
amount

net
income

shares

per
share
amount

22,413
944
23,357

$1.06
0.04
$1.02

$11,546
—
$11,546

22,120
933
23,053

$0.52
0.02
$0.50

Business Combinations, and No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. With some exceptions, the requirements
of Statement No. 147 became effective October 1, 2002. The
adoption of this Statement did not have a material impact
on consolidated earnings, financial condition or equity.
During November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation
No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
for Guarantees, Including Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others. Disclosures related to this interpretation were
effective for 2002 annual reports, and the accounting
requirements were effective January 1, 2003, and require
all guarantees and indemnifications within its scope to
be recorded at fair value as liabilities, and the maximum
possible loss under these guarantees and indemnifications
to be disclosed. The adoption of this Statement did not
have a material impact on consolidated earnings, financial
condition or equity.
On December 31, 2002, the FASB issued Statement
No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—
Transition and Disclosure, which amends FASB Statement
No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. This
Statement allows for three methods of transition for those
companies that adopt fair value recognition for stock-based
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compensation arrangements. This Statement is effective for
fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. The Company
has adopted the disclosure provisions of this Statement
and continues to account for stock-based compensation
arrangements using the intrinsic-value method.
On April 30, 2003, the FASB issued Statement No. 149,
Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities. Generally, this statement requires that
contracts with comparable characteristics be accounted for
similarly and clarifies when a derivative instrument contains
a financing component that warrants special reporting in
the statement of cash flows. This Statement is effective for
contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, with
certain exceptions, and for hedging relationships designated
after June 30, 2003. The adoption of this Statement did not
have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
earnings, financial condition or equity.
FASB Statement No. 150, Accounting for Certain
Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities
and Equity, was issued in May 2003. This Statement
establishes standards for the classification and measurement
of certain financial instruments with characteristics of both
liabilities and equity. The Statement also includes required
disclosures for financial instruments within its scope. For
the Company, the Statement was effective for instruments
entered into or modified after May 31, 2003 and otherwise
will be effective as of January 1, 2004, except for mandatorily
redeemable financial instruments. For certain mandatorily
redeemable financial instruments, the Statement will be
effective for the Company on January 1, 2005. The effective
date has been deferred indefinitely for certain other types
of mandatorily redeemable financial instruments.1 The
Company currently does not have any financial instruments
that are within the scope of this Statement.

In January 2003, FASB issued Interpretation No. 46,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, which addresses
how a business enterprise should evaluate whether it has
a controlling financial interest in an entity through means
other than voting rights and accordingly should consolidate
the entity. In December 2003, FIN 46R was issued which
replaces FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities. The Company will be required
to apply FIN 46R to variable interests in Variable Interest
Entities (“VIE”), created after December 31, 2003. For
variable interests in VIEs created before January 1, 2004, the
Interpretation will be applied beginning on January 1, 2005.2
For any VIEs that must be consolidated under FIN 46R that
were created before January 1, 2004, the assets, liabilities
and noncontrolling interests of the VIE initially would be
measured at their carrying amounts with any difference
between the net amount added to the balance sheet and
any previously recognized interest being recognized as the
cumulative effect of an accounting change. If determining
the carrying amounts is not practicable, fair value at the
date FIN 46R first applies may be used to measure the
assets, liabilities and noncontrolling interest of the VIE.
The Company is evaluating the impact of applying
FIN 46R to existing VIEs in which it has variable interests,
and does not anticipate that it will have a material impact
on the Company’s operations. As the Company continues
to evaluate the impact of applying FIN 46R, entities may
be identified that would need to be consolidated by the
Company.

4.
comprehensive income
Comprehensive income represents the change in equity of
the Company during a period from transactions and other
events and circumstances from non-stockholder sources.
It includes all changes in equity during a period except
those resulting from investments by stockholders and
distributions to stockholders.

1

For SEC registrants, Statement 150 is generally effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise at the
beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. FASB Staff Position No. FAS 150-3 deferred certain provisions of Statement 150
for certain mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interests.

2

The effective dates of FIN 46R for public enterprises vary based upon the type of VIE, whether the public enterprise is a small business issuer, and
whether FIN 46 was applied to a VIE prior to the effective date of FIN 46R. In addition, the effective date for certain investment companies has been
deferred.
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The Company’s other comprehensive income and related tax effects for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001
is as follows:

pre-tax

(In thousands)

tax expense
(benefit)

net

2003
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during period
Less: adjustment for realized gains
Other comprehensive income (loss)

$ (866)
(2,508)
$(3,374)

$ (234)
(945)
$(1,179)

$ (632)
(1,563)
$(2,195)

$ 7,160
(1,619)
$ 5,541

$ 2,547
(555)
$ 1,992

$ 4,613
(1,064)
$ 3,549

$ 3,625
(3,431)
$ 194

$ 1,170
(1,084)
$ 86

$ 2,455
(2,347)
$ 108

2002
Unrealized gains on securities:
Unrealized holding gains arising during period
Less: adjustment for realized gains
Other comprehensive income

2001
Unrealized gains on securities:
Unrealized holding gains arising during period
Less: adjustment for realized gains
Other comprehensive income

5.
business segments
Management Reporting
The Company has six reportable segments: Boston Private
Bank, Borel, Westfield, RINET, Sand Hill and BPVI. The
financial performance of the Company is managed and
evaluated by business segment. The segments are managed
separately as each business is a company with different
clients, employees, systems, risks, and marketing strategies.
Description of Business Segments
A description of each business segment is provided in Note
1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Measurement of Segment Profit and Assets
The accounting policies of the segments are the same as
those described in the summary of significant accounting
policies. Revenues, expenses, and assets are recorded by
each segment, and management reviews separate financial
statements. In addition to direct expenses, each business
segment was allocated a share of holding company expenses
prior to 2002 based on the segment’s percentage of
consolidated net income.
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Reconciliation of Reportable Segment Items
The following tables are a reconciliation of the revenues, net income, assets, and other significant items of reportable
segments as of and for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001:
2003

boston
private
bank

borel

45,717
16,950
62,667
2,075
40,100
7,506
12,986

$ 21,816
4,693
26,509
1,080
13,833
4,147
$ 7,449

56
29,149
29,205
—
17,856
4,747
$ 6,602

$

1
6,805
6,806
—
5,665
477
$ 664

$

(5)
4,121
4,116
—
3,817
120
$ 179

$

4
4,591
4,595
—
3,736
353
$ 506

168
43
211
—
11,320
(4,546)
$ (6,563)

$

$1,533,472

$574,732

$ 18,671

$ 3,518

$15,847

$4,771

$60,238

$ (14,952)

$2,196,297

$

$

$ 6,153

$

$ 860

$ 779

$

$

$

(In thousands)

Income Statement Data:
Revenues from external
customers:
Net interest income $
Non-interest income
Total revenues
Provision for loan losses
Operating expense
Income tax expense
Segment profit
$
Balance Sheet Data:
Total segment assets

westfield

$

sand
hill

rinet

bpvi

other

$

intersegment

$

8
(268)
(260)
—
(260)
0
0

total

$

67,765
66,084
133,849
3,155
96,067
12,804
$ 21,823

(In millions)

Assets Under Management

1,986

538

800

—

(150)

10,966

2002

boston
private
bank

borel

45,488
15,641
61,129
1,775
35,506
6,792
17,056

$ 18,465
3,891
22,356
720
11,131
3,806
$ 6,699

50
18,460
18,510
—
12,223
2,630
$ 3,657

(11)
5,915
5,904
—
4,972
381
$ 551

$

14
4,091
4,105
—
3,868
100
$ 137

$

6
3,963
3,969
—
3,054
361
$ 554

16
(54)
(38)
—
8,048
(3,177)
$(4,909)

$

$ 1,323,736

$466,831

$ 10,859

$ 2,629

$14,427

$3,320

$ 18,493

$ (19,554)

$ 1,820,741

$

$

$ 2,766

$

$

477

$ 501

$

$

$

sand
hill

bpvi

(In thousands)

Income Statement Data:
Revenues from external
customers:
Net interest income $
Non-interest income
Total revenues
Provision for loan losses
Operating expense
Income tax expense
Segment profit
$
Balance Sheet Data:
Total segment assets

westfield

$

sand
hill

rinet

$

bpvi

other

$

intersegment

$

—
(39)
(39)
—
(39)
—
—

total

$

64,028
51,868
115,896
2,495
78,763
10,893
$ 23,745

(In millions)

Assets Under Management

1,605

501

591

—

—

6,441

2001

boston
private
bank

(In thousands)

Income Statement Data:
Revenues from external
customers:
Net interest income $
Non-interest income
Total revenues
Provision for loan losses
Operating expense
Merger expenses
Income tax expense
Segment profit
$
Balance Sheet Data:
Total segment assets

37,700
16,445
54,145
2,650
35,697
—
3,832
11,966

borel

westfield

rinet

$

$

$

other

$

intersegment

$ 16,401
3,313
19,714
360
10,074
8,763
1,143
$ (626)

$

84
17,951
18,035
—
12,764
—
2,202
$ 3,069

(13)
5,014
5,001
—
4,332
141
274
$ 254

54
4,691
4,745
—
5,074
—
(135)
$ (194)

21
3,852
3,873
—
2,924
82
376
$ 491

19
5
24
—
24
3,306
—
$ (3,306)

$

$ 1,106,391

$375,416

$ 10,691

$ 2,388

$16,059

$1,464

$ 21,977

$(24,907)

$ 1,509,479

$

$

$ 2,751

$

$

$ 493

$

$

$

$

(108)
—
(108)
—
—
—
—
(108)

total

$

54,158
51,271
105,429
3,010
70,889
12,292
7,692
$ 11,546

(In millions)

Assets Under Management

1,518

520

568
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6.
investment securities

A summary of investment securities available for sale follows:
amortized
cost

(In thousands)

unrealized
gains
losses

market
value

At December 31, 2003
U.S. Government and agencies
Corporate bonds
Municipal bonds
Mortgage backed securities
Total

$ 179,869
19,222
192,554
795
$392,440

$ 1,514
63
2,885
3
$4,465

$ (92)
(137)
(130)
—
$(359)

$ 181,291
19,148
195,309
798
$396,546

At December 31, 2002
U.S. Government and agencies
Corporate bonds
Municipal bonds
Mortgage backed securities
Total

$ 163,730
15,887
99,068
1,369
$ 280,054

$4,390
280
2,815
19
$ 7,504

$ —
(1)
(23)
—
$ (24)

$ 168,120
16,166
101,860
1,388
$ 287,534

As of December 31, 2003, substantially all of the investment security unrealized losses of $359,000 occurred within the prior
12 months and were due to short-term interest rate fluctuations.
The following table sets forth the maturities of investment securities available for sale at December 31, 2003 and the weighted
average yields of such securities:
u.s. government and agencies

(Dollars in thousands)

Within one year
After one, but within five years
After five, but within ten years
Total

amortized
cost

market
value

weighted
average
yield

amortized
cost

market
value

weighted
average
yield

$62,420
111,914
5,535
$179,869

$62,734
113,015
5,542
$181,291

2.02%
2.80%
5.10%
2.60%

$14,222
5,000
—
$19,222

$14,233
4,915
—
$19,148

1.76%
3.11%
—
2.11%

municipal bonds

(Dollars in thousands)

Within one year
After one, but within
five years
After five, but within
ten years
After ten years
Total

corporate bonds

mortage backed securities

amortized
cost

market
value

weighted
average
yield

amortized
cost

market
value

$ 29,431

$ 29,612

2.38%

$—

$—

94,436

95,860

2.45%

15

15

29,266
39,421
$192,554

30,187
39,650
$195,309

3.62%
2.99%
2.72%

—
780
$795

—
783
$798

Actual maturities will differ from contractual maturities
because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without prepayment penalties. The
weighted average remaining life of investment securities

total

weighted
average
yield

amortized
cost

market
value

weighted
average
yield

$ 106,073

$106,579

2.09%

4.40%

211,365

213,805

2.65%

—
3.93%
3.94%

34,801
40,201
$392,440

35,729
40,433
$396,546

3.85%
3.01%
2.64%

$ —

available for sale at December 31, 2003 was 3.83 years. As
of December 31, 2003, approximately $76.9 million of
investment securities available for sale were callable before
maturity.
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The following table presents the sale of investment securities and mortgage backed securities with the resulting realized
gains, losses, and net proceeds from such sales:
year ended
december 31, 2003

(In thousands)

$90,002
2,560
(52)
$ 92,510

Amortized cost of securities sold
Gains realized on sales
Losses realized on sales
Net proceeds from sales

7.
loans receivable
The Banks’ lending activities are conducted principally in
New England and northern California. The Banks originate
single and multi-family residential loans, commercial
real estate loans, commercial loans and consumer loans
(principally home equity loans). Most loans are secured
by borrowers’ personal or business assets. The ability of the
Banks’ single family residential and consumer borrowers
to honor their repayment commitments is generally

year ended
december 31, 2002

year ended
december 31, 2001

$68,550
1,619
—
$70,169

$160,421
3,431
—
$ 163,852

dependent on the level of overall economic activity within
the lending area. Commercial borrowers’ ability to repay
is generally dependent upon the health of the economy
and the real estate sector in particular. Accordingly, the
ultimate collectibility of a substantial portion of the Banks’
loan portfolio is susceptible to changing conditions in the
New England and northern California economies. As of
December 31, 2003, the Banks had $0.4 billion of fixed rate
loans and $1.2 billion of variable rate loans outstanding.
Mortgage loans serviced for others totaled $9.0 million and
$22.4 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Loans outstanding to senior management, executive officers and directors of Borel aggregated $3.9 million and $7.2 million
at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. An analysis of the activity of these loans is as follows:
year ended
december 31, 2003

(In thousands)

$ 7,245
461
(3,199)
(606)
$ 3,901

Balance at beginning of year
Originations
Repayments
Balance due from retired directors or officers
Balance at end of year

year ended
december 31, 2002

$ 5,682
5,936
(4,373)
—
$ 7,245

All loans included above were made in the ordinary course of business under normal credit terms, including interest rates
and collateral requirements prevailing at the time of origination for comparable transactions with other persons, and do
not represent more than normal credit risk.
The following table presents a summary of risk elements within the loan portfolio:
(In thousands)

Non-accrual loans
Loans past due 90 days or more, but still accruing
Total non-performing loans
Loans past due 30-89 days
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—
$ 1,311
$3,686
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—
$ 1,057
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8.
allowance for loan losses
An analysis of the activity in the allowance for loan losses is as follows:
year ended
december 31, 2003

(In thousands)

$17,050
3,155
(114)
81
$20,172

Balance at beginning of year
Provision for loan losses
Charge-offs
Recoveries
Balance at end of year

year ended
december 31, 2002

$14,521
2,495
(228)
262
$17,050

year ended
december 31, 2001

$11,500
3,010
(49)
60
$14,521

9.
premises and equipment
Premises and equipment consisted of the following:
december 31, 2003

(In thousands)

$ 10,907
14,775
25
319
26,026
(12,286)
$ 13,740

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment
Vehicles
Buildings
Subtotal
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Premises and equipment, net
Depreciation and amortization expense related to premises
and equipment was $3.3 million, $2.8 million, and $2.1
million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. The estimated useful lives for leasehold
improvements, buildings and vehicles are 5-20 years, 40
years and 5 years, respectively. The estimated useful life
for furniture, fixtures and equipment is 5-6 years with the
exception of computer equipment, which is 3-5 years.
The Company and its subsidiaries conduct operations
in leased premises. The Company’s and Boston Private
Bank’s headquarters are located at Ten Post Office Square,
Boston, MA. Boston Private Bank has seven offices, four
in Boston, MA, one in Wellesley, MA, one in Newton, MA
and one in Cambridge, MA. BPVI has two offices, one
located at Ten Post Office Square, Boston, MA adjacent to
the Company’s headquarters, and one in Concord, NH.
RINET is also located at Ten Post Office Square, Boston,
MA, adjacent to the Company’s headquarters. Westfield is
located at One Financial Center, Boston, MA. Borel has two
offices, one in San Mateo, CA and another in Palo Alto, CA.

december 31, 2002

$ 9,007
14,308
46
319
23,680
(10,152)
$ 13,528

Sand Hill is located in Palo Alto, CA adjacent to Borel’s Palo
Alto office. The Company and Borel have also leased space
in San Francisco, CA which is scheduled to be occupied in
2004.
Generally, the initial terms of the leases for these
properties range from five to fifteen years. Most of the leases
include options to renew at fair market value for periods of
five to ten years. In addition to minimum rentals, certain
leases include escalation clauses based upon various price
indices and provisions for additional payments to cover
taxes.
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The Company is obligated for minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases. In accordance with the
terms of these leases, the Company is currently committed to minimum annual rent as follows:
minimum
lease
payments

(In thousands)

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008

$ 6,396
4,099
3,503
2,412
1,694
4,574
$22,678

Thereafter
Total
During 2003, the Company reached an agreement with
the landlord in Menlo Park, CA to purchase the lease and
terminate the Company’s lease agreement. In connection
with this agreement the Company recorded an expense of
approximately $1.5 million, net of tax, or $0.07 per share.

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001 was $6.7 million, $6.1 million, and $4.3 million
respectively. The lease at Ten Post Office Square, Boston,
MA is scheduled to be re-negotiated in February 2004 and
is expected to provide for more favorable terms.

10.
excess of cost over net assets
acquired (goodwill) and intangible assets
An analysis of the activity in goodwill and intangible assets:
intangibles

(In thousands)

Balance as of December 31, 2001
Purchase of Goldberg business
Adjust estimated deferred
purchase price
Advisory contracts acquired
Amortization
Balance as of December 31, 2002
Purchase of Morgan and
Intrater businesses
Adjust estimated deferred
purchase price
Advisory contracts acquired
Amortization
Balance as of December 31, 2003

boston
private
bank
total
other
intangibles intangibles

goodwill

sand hill
advisory
contracts

bpvi
advisory
contracts

total
goodwill

boston
private
bank

sand
hill
advisors

bpvi

—
—

$17,048
598

$2,286
—

$14,449
—

$ 313
598

(1,104)
—
—
$16,542

—
—
—
$2,286

(1,104)
—
—
$13,345

—
—
—
$ 911

$ 159
—

$159
—

—
—

—
1,394
(88)
$1,465

—
—
(18)
$141

—
—
—
—

—

—

—

—
922
(23)
$899

—
—
1,911
(239)
$3,137

(19)
$122

The Company amortizes investment advisory contracts on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life of 10
years and amortizes other intangibles over a 15 year life. The
estimated annual amortization expense for these intangibles

—
1,394
(70)
$1,324
—
—
989
(197)
$2,116

819
(180)
—
—
$ 17,181

—
—
—
—
$2,286

396
(180)
—
—
$13,561

423
—
—
—
$1,334

over the next five years is $350,000 per year, an aggregate of
$1.7 million over five years. The goodwill is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.
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The net income and earnings per share would have been as follows if there had been no amortization of goodwill in 2001. As
described in Note 3, as of January 1, 2002, goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a business combination and determined
to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized.
year ended december 31, 2001

(In thousands, except per share data)

Reported net income
Add back: goodwill amortization (net of tax)
Adjusted net income

reported
net
income

basic
earnings
per share

diluted
earnings
per share

$11,546
841
$12,387

$0.52
0.04
$0.56

$0.50
0.04
$0.54

december 31, 2003

december 31, 2002

$ 287,154
207,324
26,146
887,791
75,707
174,339
$1,658,461

$ 242,453
207,693
24,071
675,105
81,829
169,182
$1,400,333

december 31, 2003

december 31, 2002

$ 100,124
77,959
32,027
39,936
$250,046

$122,951
68,341
38,501
21,218
$ 251,011

11.
deposits
Deposits are summarized as follows:
(In thousands)

Demand deposits (non-interest bearing)
NOW
Savings
Money market
Certificates of deposit under $100,000
Certificates of deposit $100,000 or greater
Total
Certificates of deposit had the following schedule of maturities:
(In thousands)

Less than 3 months remaining
3 to 6 months remaining
6 to 12 months remaining
More than 12 months remaining
Total
Interest expense on certificates of deposit $100,000 or
greater was $3.4 million, $4.7 million, and $8.2 million
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001,
respectively.

12.
federal home loan bank borrowings
Boston Private Bank is a member of the Federal Home
Loan Bank (FHLB) of Boston and Borel is a member of
the FHLB of San Francisco and as such both have access to
short and long-term borrowings. As of December 31, 2003,
Boston Private Bank had $195.9 million of borrowings
outstanding and available credit of $255.5 million. Boston

Private Bank had additional short-term federal fund lines
with the FHLB and correspondent banks of $117.5 million
at December 31, 2003. Borrowings from the FHLB are
secured by the Bank’s stock in the FHLB and a blanket lien
on “qualified collateral” defined principally as 75% of the
carrying value of certain residential mortgage loans. Borel
had $2.0 million in outstanding borrowings at December
31, 2003 and no outstanding borrowings at December 31,
2002. Borel also had available credit with the FHLB and
other correspondent banks of $25.1 million as of December
31, 2003.
As members of the FHLB, the Banks are required to
invest in the common stock of the FHLB in the amount of
one percent of their outstanding loans secured by residential
housing or five percent of their outstanding advances from
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the FHLB, whichever is higher. As and when such stock
is redeemed, the Banks would receive from the FHLB an
amount equal to the par value of the stock. As of December
31, 2003, the Banks’ FHLB stock holdings totaled $11.1
million. The Banks’ investment in FHLB stock is recorded
at cost and is redeemable at par.
A summary of borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Banks is as follows:
december 31, 2003

(Dollars in thousands)

amount

weighted
average
rate

Within 1 year
Over 1 year to 2 years
Over 2 years to 3 years
Over 3 years to 5 years
Over 5 years
Total

$ 6,344
11,500
21,586
67,403
91,017
$197,850

2.82%
4.45
4.87
4.21
4.73
4.49%

december 31, 2002

amount

$ 13,367
4,344
11,500
58,943
57,185
$145,339

weighted
average
rate

5.49%
3.70
4.45
4.64
5.15
4.88%

13.
short-term borrowings

federal
funds
purchased

(Dollars in thousands)

securities
sold under
agreements
to
repurchase

2003
Outstanding at end of period
Maximum outstanding at any month end
Average balance for the year
Weighted average rate at end of period
Weighted average rate paid for the period

$

—
—
945
—
1.35%

$65,770
77,700
72,267
1.06%
1.12%

$

—
—
922
—
2.00%

$73,050
89,696
64,907
1.22%
1.41%

$5,500
5,500
970
1.63%
2.25%

$ 61,261
73,982
53,005
1.90%
3.02%

2002
Outstanding at end of period
Maximum outstanding at any month end
Average balance for the year
Weighted average rate at end of period
Weighted average rate paid for the period

2001
Outstanding at end of period
Maximum outstanding at any month end
Average balance for the year
Weighted average rate at end of period
Weighted average rate paid for the period
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The federal funds purchased and securities sold under
agreements to repurchase generally mature within 30 days
of the transaction date. The Company enters into sales of
securities under agreements to repurchase with clients and
brokers. These agreements are treated as financings, and
the obligations to repurchase securities sold are reflected
as a liability in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.
The securities underlying the agreements remain under
the Company’s control. Investment securities with a
market value of $71 million, and $73 million were pledged
as collateral for the securities sold under agreements to

repurchase for the years ended December 31, 2003, and
2002 respectively.
As of December 31, 2003, the Company had an unused
line of credit from a bank which totaled $24 million.
Borrowings under the facility would carry an interest
rate slightly below prime. The Company pays fees for
its revolving credit facility. The Company and its bank
subsidiaries are required to maintain specified minimum
capital requirements, loan ratios, and other debt covenant
requirements, as stipulated in the credit agreement.

14.
income taxes
The components of income tax expense (benefit) are as follows:

(In thousands)

Current expense:
Federal
State
Total current expense
Deferred expense (benefit):
Federal
State
Change in valuation allowance
Total deferred expense (benefit)
Income tax expense

year ended
december 31, 2003

year ended
december 31, 2002

year ended
december 31, 2001

$ 11,939
5,956
17,895

$12,698
788
13,486

$ 7,641
1,895
9,536

(3,684)
(1,407)
—
(5,091)
$12,804

(2,350)
(236)
(7)
(2,593)
$10,893

(1,151)
(685)
(8)
(1,844)
$ 7,692

The difference between the statutory Federal income tax rate and the effective Federal income tax rate is as follows:
year ended
december 31, 2003

(In thousands)

Statutory Federal income tax rate
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
State income tax, net of Federal tax benefit
Tax exempt interest, net
Merger costs
Tax credits
Other, net
Effective income tax rate before prior years REIT state tax charge
Retroactive REIT state tax charge
Effective income tax rate
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year ended
december 31, 2002

35.0%

35.0%

4.6
(4.5)
—
(1.7)
(0.3)
33.1%
3.9%
37.0%

1.0
(3.6)
0.1
(1.6)
0.5
31.4%
—
31.4%

year ended
december 31, 2001

35.0%
4.1
(7.5)
10.1
(0.7)
(1.0)
40.0%
—
40.0%

notes to consolidated financial statements
The components of gross deferred tax assets and gross deferred tax liabilities are as follows:
december 31, 2003

december 31, 2002

Gross deferred tax assets:
Allowance for losses on loans
Deferred compensation
Acquired deferred tax asset
Pre-operating costs
Other
Gross deferred tax assets
Valuation allowance
Total deferred tax assets

$ 7,613
5,144
2,733
105
97
15,692
—
15,692

$ 6,133
1,351
2,733
105
73
10,395
—
10,395

Gross deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale
Goodwill and acquired intangible assets
Depreciation
Stock grants
Investment in partnerships
Cash to accrual adjustment
Total gross deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax asset

1,535
937
237
201
159
—
3,069
$12,623

2,713
722
100
—
405
103
4,043
$ 6,352

(In thousands)

Management believes the existing net deductible
temporary differences that give rise to the net deferred
tax asset will reverse in periods the Company generates
net taxable income. The Company would need to generate
approximately $36.0 million of future net taxable income
to realize the net deferred tax asset at December 31, 2003.
Management believes that it is more likely than not that
the net deferred tax asset will be realized based on the
generation of future taxable income.
REIT State Tax Charge. In 2003, Massachusetts changed its
tax laws regarding the treatment of real estate investment
trusts (“REITs”). These changes eliminated the 95%
dividends received deduction for dividends paid to Boston
Private Bank by its’ subsidiary REIT for state tax purposes
prospectively and purported to do so retroactively for the
tax years 2002, 2001 and 2000. The Company entered
into a settlement agreement with the Commonwealth
of Massachusetts regarding tax liabilities relating to the
Company’s having taken the deductions in those prior years
and resolved these Massachusetts tax issues completely. The
Company recorded a charge of approximately $1.3 million
for state taxes and $150,000 for interest, net of current and
deferred federal tax savings for the retroactive portion of
this tax.
California has, to date, taken no action to change its tax
laws to eliminate a parallel tax savings mechanism available

under California law. The California Franchise Tax Board
has, however, recently issued general guidance in which
it concluded that, in its view, the foregoing tax-savings
mechanism is unavailable to California REITs. Based on
these developments and other business considerations,
the Company dissolved the REIT owned by Boston Private
Bank and the REIT owned by Borel on January 22, 2004.
Known Trends. Due to the business acquisitions that
closed in February 2004, and the changes in state tax
laws regarding REITs, the Company anticipates the 2004
effective income tax rate, before the retroactive REIT state
tax charge, will increase.

15.
employee benefits
Employee 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan
The Company established a corporate-wide 401(k) Profit
Sharing Plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries, which became effective on
July 1, 2002. The plan is a 401(k) savings and retirement
plan that is designed to qualify as an ERISA section 404(c)
plan. This plan is a continuation of the Boston Private
Bank and Trust Company 401(k) plan. As of July 1, 2002,
the assets of the Westfield Profit Sharing Plan, the RINET
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Company, Inc. Salary Reduction Contribution Plan, the
Sand Hill Advisors, Inc. Profit Sharing 401(k) Plan, the
E.R. Taylor Investments, Inc. 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan
and the Borel Bank Salary Deferral 401(k) Plan have been
merged into this plan. Generally, employees that are at least
twenty-one (21) years of age are eligible to participate in the
plan on the first day of the calendar quarter following their
date of hire. Employee contributions may be matched based
on a predetermined formula and additional discretionary
contributions may be made. Previously, the Company and
its subsidiaries maintained 401(k) plans for the benefit
of employees of the Company, with the exception of the
employees of Westfield, which maintained its own profit
sharing plan. Employees that had completed a certain
length of service, which varied by plan but was generally
between one hour and one year, and were at least twentyone (21) years of age were eligible to participate in the plans.
Under the plans, the Company typically made a matching
contribution, which also varied by plan. Consolidated
expenses relating to the above mentioned plans were $1.6
million, $1.2 million, and $916,000, in 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively.
Employee Stock Purchase Plan
The Company maintains an Employee Stock Purchase Plan
under which eligible employees may purchase common
stock of the Company at 85 percent of the lower of the
closing price of the Company’s common stock on the
first or last day of a six month purchase period on the
NASDAQ® stock exchange. Employees pay for their stock
purchases through payroll deductions at a rate equal to any
whole percentage from 1 percent to 15 percent. There were
49,067 shares issued under the plan during fiscal year 2003.
As of December 31, 2003 there were 205,500 shares reserved
for future issuance.
Salary Continuation Plans
Borel maintains a discretionary salary continuation plan
for certain officers. The officers become eligible for benefits
under the salary continuation plan if they reach a defined
retirement age while working for Borel. In December 1990,
Borel implemented a discretionary deferred compensation
plan for directors. The compensation expense relating
to each contract is accounted for individually and on an
accrual basis. The expense relating to these plans was
$251,453, $241,000, and $234,000, for 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. The net amount recognized in other
liabilities was $3.0 million and $2.9 million as of December
31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Borel has purchased life

insurance contracts to help fund these plans. Borel has
single premium life insurance policies with cash surrender
values totaling $5.3 million and $5.1 million, which are
included in other assets on the accompanying balance
sheets, as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Deferred Compensation Plan
The Company offers a deferred compensation plan that
enables certain executives to elect to defer a portion of
their income. The amounts deferred are excluded from
the employee’s taxable income and are not deductible by
the Company until paid. The employee selects from a
limited number of mutual funds and the deferred liability
is increased or decreased to correspond to the market value
of these underlying hypothetical mutual fund investments.
The increase in value is recognized as compensation
expense. Historically, the deferred compensation liability
was not funded. However, during 2003, the Company
established and funded a Rabbi Trust to offset this liability.
The Rabbi Trust holds similar assets and mirrors the activity
in the hypothetical mutual funds. Increases in the value of
the mutual funds in the Rabbi Trust are recognized in Other
Income.
Incentive Plans
Under the Long-Term Incentive Plan, the Company may
grant options or stock to its employees for an amount not
to exceed 4% of the number of shares of common stock
outstanding as of the previous year-end. Under the Directors
Stock Option Plan, the Company may grant options to its
non-employee directors for an amount not to exceed 1% of
the number of shares of common stock outstanding as of
the previous year-end. Under both plans, the exercise price
of each option equals the fair market value of the stock on
the date the options are granted, and all options expire ten
years from the date granted. Generally, options vest over
a three year period under the Long-Term Incentive Plan.
Under the Directors Stock Option Plan, options generally
vest one year after the grant date.
The restricted stock grants generally vest after either
three or four years. There were 238,575 shares granted and
$647,000 of expense was recognized in 2003 for stockbased compensation awards.
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A summary of the status of the Company’s two fixed stock option plans as of December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, and
changes during the years then ended is presented below:
2003

number of
unexercised
options

2002

weighted
average
option
price

number of
unexercised
options

2001

weighted
average
option
price

number of
unexercised
options

weighted
average
option
price

Options at beginning of year
Granted
Exercised
Canceled
Options at end of year

2,361,164
695,200
(232,862)
(68,508)
2,754,994

$ 14.11
17.46
10.81
18.80
$15.02

1,969,493
612,000
(197,879)
(22,450)
2,361,164

$10.94
22.77
9.24
14.79
$ 14.11

1,690,455
568,750
(233,456)
(56,256)
1,969,493

$ 7.69
18.97
5.99
15.07
$10.94

Options exercisable at year end

2,017,224

$13.64

1,448,890

$10.79

1,316,220

$ 8.67

Weighted average fair value of
options granted during the year

$ 5.99

$ 8.82

$ 7.24

The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003:
options outstanding

range of exercise price

$2.00 to $3.88
$4.00 to $6.58
$7.50 to $7.97
$8.13 to $9.22
$9.94 to $10.75
$11.41 to $14.63
$16.09 to $18.50
$18.72 to $20.75
$21.35 to $27.30
Total

options exercisable

number
outstanding

weighted
average
remaining
life

weighted
average
option
price

number
exercisable

weighted
average
option
price

84,000
154,200
234,042
479,698
79,797
21,973
561,475
522,257
617,552
2,754,994

1.56
2.91
5.19
5.41
4.27
6.70
9.07
7.60
8.19
6.90

$ 3.17
4.99
7.81
8.68
10.42
13.42
16.75
19.09
22.40
$15.02

84,000
154,200
234,042
479,698
79,797
21,973
173,888
417,871
371,755
2,017,224

$ 3.17
4.99
7.81
8.68
10.42
13.42
16.80
19.05
22.81
$13.64

16.
other operating expense
Major components of other operating expense are as follows:

(In thousands)

Forms and supplies
Telephone
Training and education
Postage
Insurance
Publications and subscriptions
Dues and memberships
Courier and express mail
Other
Total
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year ended
december 31, 2003

year ended
december 31, 2002

year ended
december 31, 2001

$ 907
412
250
435
1,528
303
251
431
2,241
$6,758

$ 897
369
261
387
1,092
293
224
292
2,209
$6,024

$ 834
440
125
335
782
268
235
239
2,357
$5,615

notes to consolidated financial statements

17.
financial instruments with
off-balance sheet risk
The Company is party to financial instruments with
off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business
to meet the financing needs of its customers. These
financial instruments include commitments to originate
loans, unused lines of credit and standby letters of credit.
The instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements
of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount
recognized in the consolidated balance sheet. The contract
or notional amounts of those instruments reflect the extent
of involvement the Company has in particular classes of
financial instruments.
The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event
of nonperformance by the other party to the financial
instrument for loan commitments and standby letters of
credit is represented by the contractual amount of those
instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in
making commitments and conditional obligations as it does
for on-balance sheet instruments.

Commitments to originate loans and unused lines of
credit are agreements to lend to a customer, provided there
is no violation of any condition established in the contract.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or
other termination clauses and may require payment of
a fee. Since certain commitments may expire without
being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do
not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The
Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on
a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained,
if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of
credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the
borrower.
Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments
issued by the Company to guarantee the performance by a
customer to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing
letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in
extending loan facilities to customers.

Financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk are summarized as follows:
(In thousands)

Commitments to originate loans
Variable rate
Fixed rate
Total commitments to originate loans
Unused lines of credit
Standby letters of credit (of which $16.5 million is secured
by collateral at December 31, 2003)

18.
fair value of financial instruments
The estimated fair value amounts have been determined
by using available quoted market information or other
appropriate valuation methodologies. The aggregate fair
value amounts presented do not represent the underlying
value of the Company taken as a whole.
The fair value estimates provided are made at a specific
point in time, based on relevant market information
and the characteristics of the financial instrument. The

december 31, 2003

december 31, 2002

$ 63,606
16,497
$ 80,103

$ 66,798
51,589
$ 118,387

$361,650

$281,229

$ 16,713

$ 17,463

estimates do not provide for any premiums or discounts
that could result from concentrations of ownership of a
financial instrument. Because no active market exists for
some of the Company’s financial instruments, certain fair
value estimates are based on subjective judgments regarding
current economic conditions, risk characteristics of the
financial instruments, future expected loss experience,
prepayment assumptions, and other factors. The resulting
estimates involve uncertainties and therefore cannot be
determined with precision. Changes made to any of the
underlying assumptions could significantly affect the
estimates.
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The book values and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:
december 31, 2003
(In thousands)

financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Securities (includes Money Market Investments)
Loans, net
Other assets
financial liabilities:
Deposits
FHLB borrowings
Other liabilities

book value

$ 93,488
396,746
1,597,292
32,382
1,658,461
197,850
67,870

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The carrying value reported in the balance sheet for cash
and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the
short-term nature of their maturities.
Securities
The fair value presented for securities are based on quoted
bid prices received from a third party pricing service.
Loans
Fair value estimates are based on loans with similar financial
characteristics. Fair values of commercial and residential
mortgage loans are estimated by discounting contractual
cash flows adjusted for prepayment estimates and using
discount rates approximately equal to current market
rates on loans with similar characteristics and maturities.
The incremental credit risk for non-performing loans has
been considered in the determination of the fair value of
consumer loans. The fair value estimated for home equity
and other loans equals their carrying value because of the
floating rate nature of these loans.
Other Assets
Other financial assets consist primarily of accrued interest
and fees receivable, and Federal Home Loan Bank stock, for
which the carrying amount approximates fair value.

fair value

$

93,488
396,746
1,589,354
32,382
1,659,620
205,389
67,870

december 31, 2002

book value

$

97,529
322,734
1,315,599
22,674
1,400,333
145,339
75,221

fair value

$

97,529
322,734
1,334,722
22,674
1,401,514
157,172
75,221

Deposits
The fair values reported for deposits, equal their respective
book values reported on the balance sheet. The fair values
disclosed are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on
demand at the reporting date. The fair values for certificates
of deposit are based on the discounted value of contractual
cash flows. The discount rates used are representative
of approximate rates currently offered on certificates of
deposit with similar remaining maturities.
FHLB Borrowings
The fair value reported for FHLB borrowings is estimated
based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows.
The discount rate used is based on the Company’s estimated
current incremental borrowing rate for FHLB borrowings
of similar maturities.
Other Liabilities
Other financial liabilities consist of securities sold under
agreements to repurchase and accrued interest payable for
which the carrying amount approximates fair value.
Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk
The Company’s commitments to originate loans, and for
unused lines and outstanding letters of credit are primarily
at market interest rates and therefore there is no fair value
adjustment.

b pfh - 38

notes to consolidated financial statements

19.
boston private financial holdings, inc.
(parent company only)
Condensed Balance Sheets
december 31, 2003

december 31, 2002

$ 7,225
47,311
54,536

$ 14,334
—
14,334

150,970
27,032
5,703
$238,241

130,838
22,283
4,159
$171,614

$

899
1,890
2,789

$ 1,645
2,587
4,232

25,167
124,708
83,006
2,571
235,452
$238,241

22,549
74,342
65,725
4,766
167,382
$171,614

year ended
december 31, 2003

year ended
december 31, 2002

year ended
december 31, 2001

$

$

$

(In thousands)

assets:
Cash
Short term investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment in wholly owned subsidiaries:
Banks
Nonbanks
Other assets
Total assets
liabilities:
Deferred acquisition payments
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Total liabilities
stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $1.00 par value per share; authorized: 70,000,000
issued: 25,166,836 shares in 2003, and 22,548,591 shares in 2002
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Condensed Statements of Operations
(In thousands)

income:
Interest income
Gain/(loss) on sale of securities
Management fees from subsidiaries
Dividends from subsidiaries
Banks
Nonbanks
Other income
Total income
expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Professional fees
Lease abandonment expense
Other expenses
Merger expenses
Total expenses
Income/(loss) before income taxes
Income tax expense (benefit)
Income/(loss) before equity in undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
Net income
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187
—
—

16
(60)
—

19
—
4,798

2,000
3,500
23
5,710

—
3,820
6
3,782

—
4,150
5
8,972

5,731
1,405
2,375
1,808
—
11,319
(5,609)
(4,546)

4,395
1,620
—
2,033
—
8,048
(4,266)
(3,176)

2,475
1,182
—
1,166
3,306
8,129
843
—

(1,063)
22,886
$ 21,823

(1,090)
24,835
$ 23,745

843
10,703
$ 11,546
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

year ended
december 31, 2003

year ended
december 31, 2002

year ended
december 31, 2001

$ 21,823

$ 23,745

$ 11,546

(20,434)
(7,952)

(23,755)
(4,900)

(11,231)
(3,621)

2,000
3,500
730
509
(233)
(1,252)
(1,309)

—
3,820
(133)
1,476
(294)
2,105
2,064

—
4,150
760
1,943
(1,693)
(25)
1,829

cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by (used) in operating activities:
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries
Banks
Nonbanks
Dividends from subsidiaries
Banks
Nonbanks
Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Common shares issued as compensation
(Increase) decrease in other assets
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
cash flows from investing activities:
Increase (decrease) in cash realized from purchases of
Investment in Coldstream
Acquisition of Sand Hill Advisors (1)
Capital investment in subsidiaries
Banks
Nonbanks
Capitalized acquisition costs
Loans to nonbank affiliates
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

(104)
(318)

(1,801)
(529)

—
(780)

(4,168)
(455)
(1,082)
(157)
(6,284)

(4,000)
(425)
(536)
320
(6,971)

—
—
—
320
(460)

cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Dividends paid to stockholders
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

48,433
3,904
(4,542)
47,795
40,202
14,334
$ 54,536

697
1,866
(3,582)
(1,019)
(5,926)
20,260
$ 14,334

—
1,701
(2,275)
(574)
795
19,465
$ 20,260

(1) See supplemental disclosures to the Company’s consolidated cash flow statement.

b pfh - 40

notes to consolidated financial statements

20.
selected quarterly data (unaudited)
2003
(In thousands)

fourth
quarter

third
quarter

second
quarter

first
quarter

$ 17,556
18,661
36,217
820
25,116
10,281
3,403
$ 6,878

$ 16,891
17,472
34,363
786
24,184
9,393
3,011
$ 6,382

$ 17,010
15,463
32,473
771
22,631
9,071
1,589
$ 7,482

$16,308
14,488
30,796
778
24,136
5,882
4,801
$ 1,081

$ 0.30
$ 0.28

$ 0.28
$ 0.27

$ 0.33
$ 0.32

$ 0.05
$ 0.05

Revenues
Net interest income
Non-interest income
Total revenues
Provision for loan losses
Non-interest expense
Income before taxes
Income taxes
Net income
Earnings per share
Basic
Diluted

2002
(In thousands)

fourth
quarter

third
quarter

second
quarter

first
quarter

$16,566
12,972
29,538
630
20,619
8,289
2,461
$ 5,828

$ 16,361
12,733
29,094
630
19,948
8,516
2,665
$ 5,851

$ 15,903
13,108
29,011
555
19,100
9,356
3,072
$ 6,284

$15,198
13,055
28,253
680
19,096
8,477
2,695
$5,782

$ 0.26
$ 0.25

$ 0.26
$ 0.25

$ 0.28
$ 0.27

$ 0.26
$ 0.25

Revenues
Net interest income
Non-interest income
Total revenues
Provision for loan losses
Non-interest expense
Income before taxes
Income taxes
Net income
Earnings per share
Basic
Diluted
The first quarter of 2003 includes $3.1 million, or $0.13
per share, for the estimated cost of the retroactive change
in the Massachusetts law that disallows REIT dividend
deductions back to 1999. The first quarter also includes $1.2
million, or $0.06 per share, for the estimated after tax loss
on an abandoned lease in California.

The estimated cost of the REIT loss was reduced $1.6
million, or $0.07 per share, in the second quarter of 2003
when an agreement was reached with the Commonwealth
of Massachusetts to settle the tax dispute. The estimated
cost of the California lease was increased $0.3 million, or
$0.01 per share, in the second quarter.
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21.
regulatory matters
Investment Management
The Company’s investment management business is highly
regulated, primarily at the federal level by the Securities and
Exchange Commission, National Association of Securities
Dealers, and by state regulatory agencies. Specifically, four
of the Company’s subsidiaries, including Westfield, Sand
Hill, BPVI and RINET, are registered investment advisers
under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940. The Investment
Advisers Act imposes numerous obligations on registered
investment advisers, including fiduciary, record keeping,
operational, and disclosure obligations. These subsidiaries,
as investment advisers, are also subject to regulation under
the federal and state securities laws and the fiduciary laws
of certain states. In addition, Westfield acts as a sub-advisor
and Sand Hill acts as an advisor to mutual funds which are
registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 and
are subject to that Act’s provisions and regulations. The
Company’s subsidiaries are also subject to the provisions
and regulations of the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974, (“ERISA”) to the extent any such
entities act as a “fiduciary” under ERISA with respect to
certain of its clients. ERISA and the related provisions of
the federal tax laws impose a number of duties on persons
who are fiduciaries under ERISA, and prohibit certain
transactions involving the assets of each ERISA plan which
is a client, as well as certain transactions by the fiduciaries
and certain other related parties to such plans.
Banking
The Company and its subsidiaries are also subject to
extensive supervision and regulation by the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System, (the “Federal
Reserve”), the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(“FDIC”), which insures the deposits of Boston Private
Bank and Borel to the maximum extent permitted by
law, by the Massachusetts Commissioner of Banks and
the California Department of Financial Institutions. The
federal and state laws and regulations which are applicable
to banks regulate, among other things, the scope of their
business, their investments, their reserves against deposits,
the timing of the availability of deposited funds, and the
nature and amount of collateral for certain loans. The laws
and regulations governing the Banks generally have been
promulgated to protect depositors and not for the purpose
of protecting stockholders.

The Company is subject to various regulatory capital
requirements administered by federal agencies. Failure to
meet minimum capital requirements can result in certain
mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary actions by
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a material effect
on the Company’s financial statements. For example, under
capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework
for prompt corrective action, the Banks, which are whollyowned subsidiaries of the Company, must each meet specific
capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of each
of the Banks’ assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance
sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting
standards. The Banks’ respective capital amounts and
classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments
by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and
other factors. Similarly, the Company is also subject to
capital requirements administered by the Federal Reserve
with respect to certain non-banking activities, including
adjustments in connection with off-balance sheet items.
Current FDIC regulations governing capital
requirements state that FDIC-insured institutions, to be
adequately capitalized, have qualifying total capital to
risk-weighted assets of at least 8%, of which at least 4%
must be Tier I capital. Tier I capital is defined as common
equity and retained earnings, less goodwill and purchased
intangibles, and is compared to total risk-weighted assets.
Assets and off-balance sheet items are assigned to four risk
categories, each with appropriate weights. The resulting
capital ratio represents Tier I capital as a percentage of riskweighted assets and off-balance sheet items. The risk-based
capital rules are designed to make regulatory capital more
sensitive to differences in risk profiles among banks and
bank holding companies, to account for off-balance sheet
exposure and to minimize disincentives for holding liquid
assets. As of December 31, 2003, management believes that
the Banks meet all capital adequacy requirements to which
they are subject.
As of December 31, 2003, the Company meets the
Federal Reserve requirements to be categorized as well
capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action. As of December 31, 2003, Boston Private
Bank and Borel meet the FDIC requirements under the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action to be
categorized as well capitalized. To be categorized as well
capitalized the Company and the Banks must maintain
minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-based, and Tier I
leverage ratios as set forth in the following table. There
are no conditions or events since December 31, 2003
that management believes have adversely changed the
Company’s or the Banks’ categories.
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Actual capital amounts and regulatory capital requirements as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 are presented in the tables
below.
to be
well capitalized
under prompt
for capital
corrective
actual
adequacy purposes
action purposes
(Dollars in thousands)
amount
ratio
amount
ratio
amount
ratio
as of december 31, 2003
Total risk-based capital:
Company
Boston Private Bank
Borel
Tier I risk-based
Company
Boston Private Bank
Borel
Tier I leverage capital
Company
Boston Private Bank
Borel
as of december 31, 2002
Total risk-based capital:
Company
Boston Private Bank
Borel
Tier I risk-based
Company
Boston Private Bank
Borel
Tier I leverage capital
Company
Boston Private Bank
Borel

$231,799
112,914
51,834

15.07%
11.28
10.26

$123,047
80,072
40,398

>8.0%
8.0
8.0

$ 153,809
100,090
50,497

>10.0%
10.0
10.0

212,562
100,385
45,599

13.82
10.03
9.03

61,523
40,036
20,199

4.0
4.0
4.0

92,285
60,054
30,298

6.0
6.0
6.0

212,562
100,385
45,599

9.66
6.60
8.08

88,059
60,822
22,564

4.0
4.0
4.0

110,073
76,027
28,205

5.0
5.0
5.0

$ 160,178
97,395
41,558

12.95%
11.36
11.35

$ 98,989
68,607
29,283

>8.0%
8.0
8.0

$ 123,736
85,759
36,604

>10.0%
10.0
10.0

144,642
86,661
36,975

11.69
10.11
10.10

49,495
34,303
14,642

4.0
4.0
4.0

74,242
51,455
21,962

6.0
6.0
6.0

144,692
86,661
36,975

8.16
6.61
8.20

70,946
52,408
18,041

4.0
4.0
4.0

88,683
65,509
22,552

5.0
5.0
5.0

Bank regulatory authorities restrict the Banks from lending
or advancing funds to, or investing in the securities of, the
Company. Further, these authorities restrict the amounts
available for the payment of dividends by the Banks to the
Company.
In June 2003, Boston Private Bank entered into an
informal agreement, commonly known as a Memorandum
of Understanding, with the Massachusetts Division of
Banks and the FDIC to enhance its Bank Secrecy Act and
related anti-money laundering compliance controls and
procedures. As of December 31, 2003, Boston Private Bank
had implemented many of the improvements and had met
all of the regulatory deadlines as of that date contemplated
under the formal agreement. Boston Private Bank continues
to address the remaining requirements of the informal
agreement. Any material failure to comply in a timely
manner with such remaining requirements could result in

regulatory sanctions and the delay of any, then pending
acquisitions.

22.
litigation and contingencies
Investment Management Litigation
On or about May 3, 2002, a complaint was filed against
Westfield in the Allegheny County Court of Common Pleas
in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, on behalf of the Retirement
Board of Allegheny County. The complaint alleges that
Westfield failed to uphold its contractual and common law
obligations to invest Allegheny County retirement funds
with proper care and diligence, resulting in an alleged
opportunity loss of approximately $4 million. Westfield

b pfh - 43

notes to consolidated financial statements
moved to dismiss the complaint on the grounds that the
complaint contains no allegations as to how Westfield
breached the contract between the parties or its fiduciary
duty to the Board. The plaintiff ’s unfair trade practices
claim, by which treble damages are potentially available,
was dismissed. Discovery is in progress, and Westfield will
continue to defend this claim vigorously.
Trust Litigation
Since 1984, Borel has served as a trustee of a private family
trust (“Trust”), which was a joint owner of certain real
property known as the Guadalupe Oil Field. Litigation
commenced in 1994. Certain beneficiaries of the Trust have
claimed that Borel breached its fiduciary duties in managing
oil and gas leases on the Guadalupe Oil Field, and, following
the discovery of environmental contamination of the
property, by negotiating, and later finalizing, a Settlement
Agreement and Purchase and Sale Agreement conveying
the property to Union Oil Company of California (d/b/a
UNOCAL), the operator of the oil field. In the first of the
lawsuits, in which the beneficiaries sought to remove Borel
as trustee, Borel prevailed and obtained final judgment in its
favor. In various related lawsuits, there have been numerous
procedural decisions by the trial court and by the California
Court of Appeal. Borel has prevailed on all material issues.
In the several actions pending, the plaintiff beneficiaries
seek the unwinding of the Settlement and Purchase and Sale
Agreements, the return of the Guadalupe Oil Field to the
Trusts, and unspecified damages against Borel for alleged
mismanagement of the Guadalupe Oil Field and for sale
of the property. In a 1998 trial, the plaintiff beneficiaries
submitted expert testimony of damages in the amount of
$102 million, however, the trial court found this testimony
unpersuasive. These matters have been largely inactive at
the trial court level for the last several years while various
procedural issues were pending in the California Court of
Appeal.
Borel will continue to litigate these matters vigorously.
While the ultimate outcome of these proceedings cannot
be predicted with certainty, at the present time, Borel’s
management, based on consultation with legal counsel,
believes there is no basis to conclude that liability with
respect to this matter is probable or that such liability can
be reasonably estimated.
Other
The Company is also involved in routine legal proceedings
occurring in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion
of management, final disposition of these proceedings will

not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition
or results of operations of the Company.

23.
related party transactions
In connection with the relocation of its headquarters
office, Borel entered into a ten-year lease during 1986 for
office space located in the Borel Financial Center in San
Mateo, CA, which is owned by the Borel Estate Company,
a limited partnership. Two of the general partners of Borel
Estate Company are relatives of Borel’s Vice-Chairman and
Director Harold A. Fick and of Chief Executive Officer and
Director Ronald G. Fick. Harold A. Fick is also a director of
the Company. The Vice Chairman of the Board of Borel,
Miller Ream, is a general partner in a limited partnership
which is the other general partner. The limited partners of
Borel Estate Company are Harold A. Fick, Ronald G. Fick
and two of their relatives.
In February 1997, Borel exercised the first of five fiveyear options to extend the term of the lease commencing
on March 12, 1997. As calculated pursuant to the terms of
the lease, the base rent for the additional period was $2.65
per square foot per month. Payment of the base rent was
abated for the first six months of the additional period,
through September 11, 1997. During 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, Borel Estate Company received $1.0 million,
$0.9 million, and $0.7 million in rental payments from
Borel. In December 2001, Borel exercised its second option
to extend the lease for an additional five-year term. The
lease payments for this additional period, starting March
13, 2002 were calculated in accordance with the terms
of the original lease. The lease calls for a rent adjustment
equal to the lesser of an adjustment for the change in the
consumer price index (CPI) for the five year period, or an
adjustment to make the rental payments equal to 90% of
the agreed upon market rent. The cost would be $3.43 per
square foot if based on the agreed upon fair market rent.
The cost based on then current CPI was $3.33 per square
foot. The lease was therefore extended for additional five
years at $3.33 per square foot. In July 2002 Borel acquired
an additional 2,957 square feet of rentable space within
the building and negotiated inclusion of that space into its
existing lease at the same cost of $3.33 per square foot. The
lease extension of this additional space calls for renewals at
100% of fair market value. Effective January 1, 2004, Borel
has contracted for an additional 3,039 square feet of space
at the Borel Financial Center at $2.50 per square foot for the
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next 38 months, the term remaining in the second extension
to the original lease. Thereafter, the price per square foot
will be at market value.
Dr. Allen Sinai, a Director of the Company, is President,
Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Economist of Decision
Economics, Inc. (“DEI”). In October, 2001 DEI asserted
a claim against Boston Private Bank in the amount of
approximately $500,000 for damages allegedly sustained
in connection with allegedly unauthorized and forged
checks executed by DEI’s former office manager over a
period of many years in an account at Boston Private Bank.
Negotiations ensued between DEI and Boston Private Bank
and in January, 2003 Boston Private Bank settled this claim
by a payment to DEI in the amount of $150,000. Dr. Sinai
recused himself from participation in the negotiations that
resolved this claim.
In addition, there are no loans to executive officers and
directors of the Company. Loans outstanding to certain
senior management, directors and executive officers at
Borel are on substantially the same terms as those prevailing
at the time for comparable transactions with other persons.
For more information see Note 7-Loans Receivable.

24.
common stock
During December 2003, the Company sold approximately
2.1 million shares of common stock at a public offering
price of $24.25 per share. The net proceeds after deducting
underwriting expenses were approximately $47.4 million
dollars. In connection with the sale, the Company also
entered into a forward sale agreement pursuant to which
an affiliate of Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
Incorporated agreed to borrow and sell an additional 2.3
million shares of the Company’s common stock.
The forward sale agreement provides for settlement on
a settlement date or dates to be specified at the Company’s
discretion until December 11, 2004 at an initial forward
sale price of $22.89 per share, which is the public offering
price of the Company’s shares of common stock of $24.25
less an underwriting discount. The forward sale price will
be increased based on an interest factor that is based on
the federal funds rate, less a spread, and decreased for
subsequent dividends.
The Company can be required to settle the forward
sale agreement on a date specified by the purchaser if (1) in
its judgment, it is unable to continue to borrow a number
of shares of the Company’s common stock equal to the

number of shares to be delivered by it under the forward
sale agreement or it is commercially impracticable to do so,
or (2) the closing price of the Company’s common stock
is equal to or less than $8.00 per share on any trading day.
The purchaser’s decision to exercise its right to require
the Company to settle the forward sale agreement will be
made irrespective of the Company’s need for capital. In the
event that early settlement of the forward sale agreement
is based on the closing price of the Company’s common
stock as described above, the Company will have the right
to elect stock, cash or net stock settlement. In the event that
early settlement of the forward sale agreement is based on
the availability of stock borrowed as described above, the
Company would be required to settle by delivering shares of
its common stock.
In the unlikely event of a cash settlement the payment
would be calculated based upon the difference between
the Company’s share price and the forward sale price
multiplied by the number of shares in the forward sale
agreement. At December 31, 2003, this would have resulted
in a payment by the Company to Merrill Lynch of $4.5
million, which approximates fair value. If the Company’s
current share price is lower than the forward sale price
than the Company would receive a payment from Merrill
Lynch. For every dollar increase (decrease) in the value of
the Company’s stock, the payment to Merrill Lynch would
increase (decrease) by $2.3 million. Except under limited
circumstances, the Company has the right to elect cash or
net stock settlement under the forward sale agreement so
the Company can settle the contract by delivering shares of
its common stock.
The impact of the forward contract is reflected in
the financial statements through an increase to diluted
common shares outstanding.

25.
subsequent events (unaudited)
On February 5, 2004 the Company completed its acquisition
of a 20% interest in Bingham, Osborn and Scarborough—a
financial planning and investment management firm
located in San Francisco, CA.
On February 6, 2004 the Company completed
its acquisition of an 80% interest in Dalton, Greiner,
Hartman, Maher & Co. (DGHM) of New York. DGHM is a
value style manager specializing in small-cap equities with
approximately $3.0 billion in client assets. The remaining
20% interest in the firm has been retained by members
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of the DGHM management team. The purchase price was
approximately $96.0 million, with approximately 86%
payable in cash. Approximately 20% of the total estimated
value is contingent upon operating results through a fiveyear earn-out period. The results of operations of DGHM
will be included in the earnings of the Company starting
February 6, 2004. Goodwill of $54.6 million and intangible
assets of $39.4 million were recognized upon acquisition.

(In thousands)

Intangible assets consist mostly of advisory contracts which
are being amortized using the constant attrition method.
Approximately 11% of the net intangibles will be amortized
each year for 7 years. The Company expects to amortize
the remaining unamortized cost over an 8 year life using
the straight line method. The amortization of both the
intangibles and the goodwill is expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.

dalton, greiner,
hartman, maher & company llc
condensed balance sheet
february 6, 2004

Assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable
Advisory contracts and other intangibles
Goodwill
Other assets
Total assets

$ 1,200
4,926
39,440
54,865
729
$101,160

Liabilities:
Payables and accrued expenses
Total liabilities

$ 3,660
$ 3,660

Stockholders’ Equity:
Minority interest
Stockholders’ equity
Total Stockholders’ equity

600
96,900
$ 97,500

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

$101,160

On February 17, 2004 the Company completed its
acquisition of First State Bancorp, the holding company of
First State Bank of California, a commercial bank situated
in Los Angeles County with assets of approximately $185
million. Founded in 1983, First State Bank of California is
headquartered in Granada Hills with an office in Burbank

$

and a loan production office in Rancho Cucamonga, CA.
In the transaction, the Company acquired 100% of First
State’s common stock for a combination of 15% cash and
85% stock, valued at $18.93 per share, with an aggregate
transaction value of $27.5 million.
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independent auditors report

the board of directors and stockholders
boston private financial holdings, inc.:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Boston Private Financial Holdings, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Boston Private Financial Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
As discussed in Notes 3 and 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, effective January 1, 2002, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.

Boston, Massachusetts
February 27, 2004
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(Unaudited)
The following table represents selected financial data for the five fiscal years ended December 31, 2003. The data set forth
below does not purport to be complete. It should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the more
detailed information, including the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes, appearing elsewhere
herein. This data has been restated to reflect the mergers described in Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2003

2002

2001

2000

1999

At December 31:
Total balance sheet assets
Total loans (excluding loans held for sale)
Allowance for loan losses
Investment securities and money market investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Excess of cost over net assets acquired
Deposits
Borrowed funds
Stockholders’ equity
Non-performing assets

$ 2,196,297
1,612,564
20,172
396,746
93,488
20,318
1,658,461
263,620
235,452
1,311

$ 1,820,741
1,301,726
17,050
322,734
97,529
18,007
1,400,333
218,389
167,382
1,057

$ 1,509,479
1,097,417
14,521
284,309
58,281
17,207
1,145,329
190,978
139,631
904

$ 1,294,564
878,932
11,500
215,874
110,767
18,371
1,002,462
139,878
128,625
1,303

$ 884,389
683,935
9,242
110,077
41,567
3,563
706,108
97,223
65,512
1,317

Client assets under management

$10,966,000

$ 6,441,000

$ 6,529,000

$ 6,758,000

$ 4,545,000

$

92,680
24,915
67,765
3,155
64,610
66,084
96,067
34,627
12,804
21,823(5)

$

90,293
26,265
64,028
2,495
61,533
51,868
78,763
34,638
10,893
23,745

$

$

$

0.96
0.92(5)
22,822,608
23,714,644
$
0.16
$
9.36

$
$

1.06
1.02
22,412,665
23,357,066
$
0.16
$
7.42

$
$

For The Year Ended December 31:
Interest and dividend income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses
Fees and other income
Operating expense
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net income
Per Share Data:
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share
Average common shares outstanding
Average diluted shares outstanding
Cash dividends per share
Book value
Selected Operating Ratios:
Return on average assets
Return on average equity
Interest rate spread(1)
Net interest margin(1)
Total fees and other income/total revenue(2)
Asset Quality Ratios:
Non-performing loans to total loans
Non-performing assets to total assets
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans
Net loans recovered (charged-off) to average loans

$
$
$

$

1.06%(5)
12.16%(5)
3.35%
3.64%
49.37%
0.08%
0.06%
1538.67%
0.00%

$

92,479
38,321
54,158
3,010
51,148
51,271
83,181
19,238
7,692
11,546(3)

0.52
0.50(3)
22,119,726
23,053,052
$
0.14
$
6.28

1.42%
15.36%
3.80%
4.19%
44.75%
0.08%
0.06%
1613.06%
0.00%

0.80%(3)
8.28%(3)
3.52%
4.18%
48.63%
0.08%
0.06%
1606.31%
0.00%

$

79,152
35,863
43,289
2,160
41,129
39,174
54,790
25,513
8,843
16,670

$
0.87
$
0.85
19,094,010
19,714,510
$
0.12
$
5.87

$

57,875
25,068
32,807
1,524
31,283
33,469
43,861(4)
20,891
7,671
13,220(4)

$
0.74
$
0.72(4)
17,950,648
18,281,847
$
—
$
3.64

1.55%
19.48%
3.59%
4.43%
47.50%

1.63%
22.05%
3.77%
4.39%
50.50%

0.15%
0.10%
882.58%
0.01%

0.19%
0.15%
701.75%
0.03%

(1) Interest rate spread represents the difference between the weighted average yield on interest earning assets on a fully taxable equivalent basis, and the weighted average
cost of interest bearing liabilities, and net interest margin represents net interest income on a fully taxable equivalent basis as a percent of average interest earning assets.
(2) Total revenue is defined as net interest income plus fees and other income.
(3) After eliminating $9.7 million of non-recurring merger expenses, net of tax, net income for the year ended December 31, 2001 was $21.2 million, or $0.92 per share,
return on average assets was 1.47%, and return on average equity was 15.22%.
(4) Includes the cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax, of $125,000, or $0.01 per diluted share.
(5) After eliminating the REIT tax adjustment and lease accrual, net of tax, net income for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $24.8 million or $1.05 per share, return
on average assets was 1.21% and return on average equity was 13.83%.
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